
MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The City of Sweet Home will work to build an economically strong community with an efficient and effective local 
government that will provide infrastructure and essential services to the citizens we serve. As efficient stewards of 
the valuable assets available, we will be responsive to the community while planning and preparing for the future. 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, 
advanced notice is requested by notifying the City Manager’s Office at 541-367-8969. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
         

CITY OF SWEET HOME  
CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA   
December 11, 2018, 6:30 p.m. 
Sweet Home Police Department, 1950 Main Street 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 PLEASE silence all cell phones – Anyone who wishes to speak, please sign in. 
 
A. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
B. Roll Call:   

Councilor Briana   Councilor Gourley  
   Councilor Coleman   Mayor Mahler  
   Councilor Gerson   Councilor Trask 
   Councilor Goble 

 
C. Consent Agenda: 

a) Approval of Minutes: November 27, 2018 -ES (pg. 3) 
          November 27, 2018 – Regular Meeting (pg. 4-8) 

 
D. Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of Petitions: 

a) Capitol Christmas Tree Recognition - Nikki Swanson, USFS & Councilor Coleman 
b) Oregon Community Foundation 

 
E. Old Business: 

a) Request for Council Action – Resolution No. 20 for 2018 – A Resolution Adopting 
Revised Personnel Policies for Employees, Interns and Volunteers of the City of Sweet 
Home. (pg.9-156) 

 
F. New Business: 

a) Proclamation – Canvassing of Election Results (pg. 157-162) 
 

G. Ordinance Bills 
i. Introduction and Request for Ordinance  
ii. First Reading of Ordinance Bills  
iii. Second Reading of Ordinance Bills 
iv. Third Reading of Ordinance Bills (Roll Call Vote Required) 

(1) Ordinance Bill No. 5 for 2018 – Ordinance No. 1273 – An Ordinance Amending 
the Official Zoning Map. (pg. 163-166) 

 
H. Reports of Committees: 

a) Mayor’s Report 
b) City Manager’s Report 

WIFI Passcode: 
guestwifi 



MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The City of Sweet Home will work to build an economically strong community with an efficient and effective local 
government that will provide infrastructure and essential services to the citizens we serve. As efficient stewards of 
the valuable assets available, we will be responsive to the community while planning and preparing for the future. 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, 
advanced notice is requested by notifying the City Manager’s Office at 541-367-8969. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

c) Department Director’s Reports: 
i. Finance Director 

(1) Monthly Report (pg. 167-168) 
(2) Checks by Date (pg. 169-172) 

ii. Library Services Director 
(1) Monthly Report (pg.173) 
(2) Circulation Statistics by Item (pg. 174) 
(3) Patron Statistics Sept – Nov 2018 (pg.175) 
(4) Library Advisory Board Minutes (pg. 176) 

iii. Community and Economic Development Director  
(1) Department Report (pg.177-178) 

iv. Police Chief 
v. Public Works Director 

(1) Monthly Report (pg. 179-181) 
vi. City Attorney’s Report  

 
I. Reports of City Officials:  

Administrative & Finance/Property Goble 

Public Safety/Traffic Safety  Briana 

Public Works Mahler 

Park and Tree Committee  Trask 

Youth Advisory Council Gourley 

Chamber of Commerce Coleman 

Fire District Trask 

Council of Governments  Gerson 

Area Commission on Transportation Briana 

Solid Waste Advisory Council Goble 

Ad Hoc Committee on Health  Gourley 

 
J. Council Business for Good of the Order: 
 
K. Adjournment  

 



 

 SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES 

 
 November 27, 2018 
 
 
The City Council Executive Session was opened at 5:40 p.m. in the Sweet Home Police 
Department. 
 
Roll Call: Councilor Briana  AB   Councilor Gourley  P   
  Councilor Coleman  P  Mayor Mahler  P  
  Councilor Gerson  P  Councilor Trask  P 
  Councilor Goble  P (5:42 PM)     
     
Staff:  City Manager Ray Towry, City Attorney Robert Snyder and Recording Secretary Julie 
Fisher. 
 
Media: Sean Morgan, The New Era  
 
Mayor Mahler read the Executive Session Announcement.   
 
The purpose of the meeting was an Executive Session as authorized by ORS 192.660 (2)(i) 
To review and evaluate the employment-related performance of the chief executive officer of 
any public body, a public officer, employee or staff member who does not request an open 
hearing, in this case, the City Manager. 
 
There was time for questions and comments, no official decisions were made.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:33 p.m. 
  
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the November 27, 2018 
Executive Session City Council Meeting. 
 
 
              
           Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                     
City Manager– Ex Officio City Recorder 



 

P a g e  - 1 - | 5 
 

SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
November 27, 2018 

 

Mayor Mahler called the meeting to order at 6:40 p.m. in the Sweet Home Police Department. The Pledge 

of Allegiance was recited. 

 

Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry, Library Services Director Rose Peda, City Attorney Robert 

Snyder, Community and Economic Development Director Jerry Sorte, Public Works Director Greg 

Springman, Police Chief Jeff Lynn, Finance Director Brandon Neish and Recording Secretary Julie 

Fisher. 

 

Visitors Registered to Speak: Liza Newcomb 

 

Media: Sean Morgan, The New Era  

            Alex Paul, Albany Democrat Herald 

     
Roll Call: Councilor Briana  AB  Councilor Gourley             P 

  Councilor Coleman  P  Mayor Mahler   P  

  Councilor Gerson  P  Councilor  Trask  P  

  Councilor Goble  P 
 

 

Consent Agenda: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Recognition of Visitors & Hearing 

of Petition: 

 

Old Business: 

 
New Business: 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

Willamette Neighborhood Housing 

Service  

 

Public Hearing Opened at 6:44pm. 

 

Exparte, Conflict of Interest or 

Personal Bias. 

 

Staff Report 

 

Testimony in Favor 

 

 

 

Testimony in Opposition 

 

Motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda as 

submitted (Trask/Goble). Motion passed with 6 Ayes, 0 

Opposed, 1 Absent (Briana). 

 

Items on the consent agenda are as follows: 

Approval of Minutes: November 11, 2018 – Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

 

None 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Mayor Mahler explained the Public Hearing Process. 

 

The Mayor asked if any of the Council had any Exparte, Conflict 

of Interest or Personal Bias.  They did not. 

 

City Manager Ray Towry introduced the topic. 

 

Liza Newcomb with Willamette Neighborhood Housing gave a 

presentation on the Community Development Block Grant 

Program and answered questions of the Council.  

 

None 



 

P a g e  - 2 - | 5 
 

Neutral Testimony 

 

Public Hearing Closed 

 

Request for Council Action –

Resolution No. 17 for 2018 – A 

Resolution  

 

 

Request for Council Action – 

Employee Personnel Policies 

Consideration 

 

Request for Council Action – 

StepUp IT Services Contract 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Request for Council Action – Non-

Represented Salary Table 

Resolution No. 18 for 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Request for Council Action – City 

Hall Project Interfund Transfer 

Resolution No. 19 for 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

None 

 

Mayor Mahler closed the Public Hearing at 7:07pm. 

 
Motion to authorize the staff to submit an application for the 

2018 CDBG Program in the amount of $500,000.  

(Gerson/Coleman).  Motion passed with 6 Ayes, 1 Opposed 

(Goble) and 1 Absent (Briana) 

 

City Manager Towry introduced the Employee Personnel Policies 

for Council to review.  The final will come before Council for 

approval during the December 11, 2018 City Council Meeting. 

 

Finance Director Neish introduced the Request for Council 

Action for IT Services.  FD Neish explained the needs of the City 

that prompted a Request for Proposals, namely a 24/7 support 

team to aid the Police Department. 
 

Motion to Authorize Staff to enter in a contract with StepUP 

IT for IT Services (Goble/Gourley).   

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Mayor Mahler 

Councilor Trask 

Councilor Briana 

Councilor Coleman 

Councilor Gerson 

Councilor Goble 

Councilor Gourley 

 
Motion Passed with 6 Ayes and 1 Absent (Briana) 

 

Finance Director Neish introduced the Request for Council 

Action regarding Resolution No. 18 for 2018 – A Resolution 

establishing salary schedules for Non-Represented General 

Employees.   

 
Motion to Approve Resolution No. 18 for 2018 – A 

Resolution Establishing Salary Schedules for Non-

Represented General Employees (Gourley/Trask).  Motion 

Passed with 4 Ayes (Gourley, Trask, Goble, Mahler), 1 

Opposed (Gerson), 1 Recused (Coleman) and 1 Absent 

(Briana). 

 
City Attorney Snyder read Resolution No. 18 by title only. 

 

Finance Director Neish introduced the Request for Council 

Action for an Interfund Transfer for the New City Hall Project. 

 
Motion to Approve Resolution No. 19 for 2018 – A 

Resolution Authorizing an Interfund Transfer for Capital 

Project (Gourley/Trask). 

 

 

Aye 

Aye 

Absent 

Aye 

Aye 

Aye 

Aye 



 

P a g e  - 3 - | 5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Request for Council Action and 

First Reading of Ordinance Bills: 

 

Second Reading: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Third and Final Reading of 

Ordinance Bills: 

  

Roll Call Vote: 

Councilor Trask 

Councilor Briana 

Councilor Coleman 

Councilor Gerson 

Councilor Goble 

Councilor Gourley 

Mayor Mahler 

 

Motion Passed with 6 Ayes and 1 Absent (Briana) 

 

City Attorney Snyder read by title only Resolution No. 19 for 

2018. 

 

 

None 

 

Community and Economic Development Director Sorte read by 

Title Only Ordinance Bill No. 5 for 2018. 

 
Motion to move Ordinance Bill No. 5 for 2018 – An 

Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map to Third and 

Final Reading (Trask/Coleman).  Motion passed with 6 Ayes, 

0 Opposed and 1 Absent (Briana). 

 

None 

 

 

Mayor’s Report  

 

City Manager’s Report 

 

 

 

None 

 

City Manager Towry announced he is leaving on December 2nd to 

Washington D.C for the Capitol Christmas Tree Lighting.  In the 

event of an emergency, City Manager Towy stated Chief Lynn will 

take charge. 

An Administration, Finance and Property Committee meeting was 

scheduled for December 11th at 5:30pm to review Bulk Water Rate 

Proposals. 

 

Department Directors Reports: 

 

Finance Director 

 

 

Library Director 

 

 

Community and Economic 

Development Director 

 

 

 

Police Chief 

 

 

 

 

Finance Director Neish gave a brief property tax presentation as 

well as reviewed the Monthly Revenue Expense graphs. 

 

Library Services Director Peda invited the Council to an event on 

December 6th titled Man of Words Theater. 

 

CEDD Jerry Sorte gave an update on the Community Clean Up 

Event reporting 69 properties were contacted, 51 of those 

properties utilized the services.  It is estimated 38 tons of waste 

was collected. 

 

Chief Lynn presented statistics from the department and 

announced hiring two new officers. 

Aye 

Absent 

Aye 

Aye 

Aye 

Aye 

Aye 



 

P a g e  - 4 - | 5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Works 

 

 

 

     City Attorney  

A second homelessness meeting will be scheduled to discuss the 

issue. 

A Sharing Tree is in the lobby of both the Police Department and 

the Fire Department. 

 

City Manager Towry reported for Public Works Director Springman 

on the 40 leaks found during the leak detection work.  5 leaks 

were large and immediately repaired. 

 

None 

 

Committee Reports: 

 

Administration & Finance/ 

Property Committee 

 

Public/Traffic Safety 

 

Public Works 

 

 

No Report.   

 

 

No Report 

 

No Report 

City Boards/Committees: 

 

         Chamber of Commerce 

 

 

 

          Fire District 

 

 

          Park & Tree Commission 

 

 

          Y.A.C.  

 

 

          Ad Hoc Committee  

          Community Healthcare 

 

 

          

 

 

Councilor Coleman reported the Chamber has an employee 

working thru Easter Seals.   

The tree lighting at Clover Park is this Saturday. 

 

Councilor Trask reported the Sharing Tree is up. 

 

 

Councilor Trask reported the meeting was cancelled due to lack of 

quorum.   

 

Councilor Gourley reported the YAC will begin scheduling lunch 

meetings and inviting business leaders for discussion. 

 

Councilor Gourley reported a meeting at Sweet Home School 

District on Thursday at 6:30pm to reveal the results of the survey 

on how first year medical students from Western University can 

serve with the public. 

 

   Regional Boards/Committees: 

 

Area Commission on Transportation 

(ACT) 

 

Council of Governments (COG) 

 

Solid Waste Advisory Council 

(SWAC) 

 

Council Business for Good of the 

Order: 

 

Adjournment: 

 

 

No Report 

 

 

No Report 

 

No Report 

 

 

None 

 

 

With No further business the meeting adjourned at 8:23  PM 

 



 

P a g e  - 5 - | 5 
 

The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the November 27, 2018 regular 

City Council Meeting. 

 

 

               

                        Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

              

City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 



1 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
PREFERRED AGENDA: 
December 11, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
City Manager, Ray Towry 
REVIEWED:  
City Manager, Ray Towry  

TITLE:  2019 City of Sweet Home 
Personnel Policy Updates 
ATTACHMENTS:   
2019 City of Sweet Home 
Personnel Policy 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
  X   RESOLUTION 
 _   MOTION 
      OTHER 
__     CONSIDERATION 

 
PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:  Council review of updates to the City of Sweet Home 
Personnel Policy. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:  The Personnel Policy for the City of Sweet Home was last 
updated in 2011.  New laws have since been adopted, such as Rest Breaks for 
Expression of Breast Milk and Crime Victim Leave, requiring updates to our policies.  
Staff utilized a template from CIS, revised some language with the help of our labor 
attorney to make it align with our policies.  A draft was presented to City Council 
October 23, 2018 November 13, 2018 and November 27, 2018.  The following changes 
have been made since the November 27, 2018 draft presentation. 

• The City-provided benefits described in the is handbook apply to regular 
employees.. changed to The City-provided benefits described in the 
handbook varies by classification as spelled out in this policy and applies 
only to regular emplolyees. (pg. 1) 

• Grammetical error corrected: A reasonable accommodation is any change 
or adjustment to a job or work environment that does not cause..(pg. 3) 

• Personnel Files - Human Resources Office changed to Executive 
Department (pg. 5) 

• New Required Education/Training Policy: Added new section (pg. 8) 

• Meals – Since the breakfast and dinner allowances above are figured on 
the basis of hours worked, the IRS considers them taxable to the 
employee.  Changed to: Meal reimbursements are taxable unless an 
employee is away from their tax home overnight on official city business in 
accordance with IRC Section 162(a)(2).  (pg. 10) 

• City Vehicles (pg. 10) was moved under Compensation (pg. 37). 

• Attendance, Punctuality and Reporting Absences - Employees who are 
absent from work for any reason or who will not show up for work on time, 
must inform their supervisor via a telephone call at least sixty minutes 
prior to the start of their shift or as specified in department policy… now 
reads: Employees who are absent from work for any reason must inform 
their supervisor via a telephone call at least ninety minutes prior to the 
start of their shift or as specified in department policy.  Employees who will 
not show up for work on time, must inform their supervisor via a telephone 
call as soon as possible. (pg. 15) 

• The Substance Abuse Policy was edited to reflect the policy previously 
bargained by the ASCME Union. (pg. 19-20) 

• New Section Added - Probationary Period: Every new employee hired 
shall serve a probationary period of six (6) months. The City may 
terminate probationary employees for any reason, with or without cause.  



2 

 

In lieu of termination at six (6) months, the City may extend an employee’s 
probationary period in writing, which summarizes the City’s concerns 
about the employee’s performance and suggests ways for the employee 
to improve. The extension of the probationary period shall not exceed 
ninety (90) days, absent mutual consent between the City and employee. 
This extension may be revoked by the City at any time if, in its sole 
opinion, the employee is unable or unwilling to meet the requirements of 
the position. (pg. 33) 

• Regular Part-time: Employment requiring less than 40 hours, but more 
than 20 hours, of work per week.. now reads Employment requiring less 
than 40 hours of work per week. (pg. 33) 

• Regular Part-time: Regular, Part-time employees are not eligible for 
benefits except those mandated by applicable law – added or as 
otherwise noted in this policy. (pg. 33) 

• New Section – Additional Compensation: From time to time the City may 
provide meals, light snacks, hors d’oeurves and/or beverages (non-
alcoholic) such as tea, coffee and/or soda for staff and/or the public during 
training and other special occasions. (pg. 36) 

• Return to work – be reinstated to the same position t you held at the time.. 
(pg. 39) 

• Scheduling Vacation – Changed Department Heads to Department Head’s 
(pg. 41) 

• Management Leave – Removed the following: Personnel who sever 
employment in the middle of the fiscal year and use more days than the 
proportional amount for their employment period may have the excess use 
deducted from the final paycheck based on an hourly rate, as permitted by 
applicable law. (pg 43) 

• Holidays and Floating Holidays: Regular full-time employees will receive a 
day off with pay on each of these recognized holidays added and Regular 
part-time employees will receive recognized holidays pro-rated based 
upon hours worked also added – Each Regular full-time employee will 
receive 2 Personal Holidays (hours to equal 2 shifts) (pg. 43) 

• Bereavement Leave: Changed from 5 paid days to 3. Bereavement leave 
may be used to attend the funeral or alternative to a funeral of the family 
member, and/or to make arrangements necessitated by the death of the 
family member. (removed or to grieve the death of the family member) 
(pg. 49) 

• Unforseeable Sick Leave – Generally, an employee should notify their 
immediate supervisor of unforeseeable sick leave at least three hours 
prior to the beginning of their shift… now reads Generally, an employee 
should notify their immediate supevisor of unforeseeable sick leave at 
least ninety minutes prior to the beginning of their shift, or as specified in 
department policy,(pg. 53) 

 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:   How do we promote internal efficiency and prevent 
risk associated with personnel policies and comply with current laws? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   



3 

 

● City of Sweet Home Staff – Staff benefits by having personnel policies that are 
clear, provide direction and that are consistent with law. 

● City of Sweet Home Management - Management is more effective and efficient 
with clear, updated, best practices as policy. 

● Sweet Home Residents – Residents and taxpayers essentially pay the price 
when policies lead to inefficient operations or lawsuits. 
 

ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
1. None Known  

 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
Council adoption of updated policies by Resolution. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.   
2. Approve Resolution No. 20 for 2018 – A Resolution Adopting Revised Personnel 

Policies for Employees, Interns and Volunteers of the City of Sweet Home. 
3. Revise the Personnel Policies – Direct Staff to make additional revisions and 

bring back to Council. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Option #2  Approve Resolution No. 20 for 2018 – A Resolution 
Adopting Revised Personnel Policies for Employees, Interns and Volunteers of the City 
of Sweet Home. 

 
 



































































































































































  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 20 FOR 2018 
 
 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING REVISED PERSONNEL POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES, 
INTERNS AND VOLUNTEERS OF THE CITY OF SWEET HOME. 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Sweet Home and the 
employees of the City of Sweet Home that certain policies relating to employment by the 
City of Sweet Home be clearly set forth; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Sweet Home, has prepared and presented to 
the City Council a manual of personnel policies for City employees, interns and 
volunteers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adoption of these policies appear to be in the best interest of the City of 
Sweet Home and its employees, interns and volunteers, and as authorized by Sweet 
Home Municipal Code Chapter 2.48 -  PERSONNEL SYSTEM; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SWEET HOME: 
  

That the personnel policies presented to the City Council by the City Manager of 
the City of Sweet Home effective January 1, 2019 are hereby approved and 
adopted as the policies for all employees, interns and volunteers of the City of 
Sweet Home, Oregon.  

 
This Resolution supersedes and replaces Resolution No. 19 for 2011 and shall 
become effective immediately upon passage by the City Council and signature of 
the Mayor. 

 
  
PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor this 11th day of December 2018. 
 
 
 

       
              Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
City Manager - Ex Officio City Recorder 
 
 
 
 



































































































































1 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
December 11, 2018 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Julie Fisher, Admin Assistant 
REVIEWED:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:  Canvassing of Election 
Results 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Proclamation – 
Canvassing of Election Results, 
Official Election Abstracts 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
    _ RESOLUTION 
 ___ MOTION 
X      OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:  Canvassing of Election Results 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:  
Seven candidates contended for four vacancies on the Sweet Home City Council.   The 
three with the highest number of votes will obtain four-year positions, the candidate with 
the next highest votes will gain the two-year position.   
On the Ballot for the November 6, 2018 Election were: 

• Susan M.C. Coleman 

• Diane E. Gerson 

• Greg Mahler 

• Bob Briana 

• Greg Korn 

• Larry Angland 

• Cortney S. Nash  
    

THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:   After an election, Council is required to review the 
results and declare the winning candidates and City Ballot Measures.  The City is then 
required to post the proclamations. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   
City of Sweet Home Citizens:  
 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 

1. None Known 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: Formal recognition of voting results by City 
Council for compliance with election requirements. 
 
OPTIONS: 
Make a Motion to accept the November 6, 2018 General Election results that Greg 
Mahler, Susan M.C. Coleman and Diane E.Gerson won the 4-year seats on the Sweet 
Home City Council with terms to expire December 31, 2022 and Cortney S. Nash won 
the 2-year seat on the Sweet Home City Council with a term to expire December 31, 
2020. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council, by Motion, accept the November 6, 2018 
General Election results that Greg Mahler, Susan M.C. Coleman and Diane E.Gerson 
won the 4-year seats on the Sweet Home City Council with terms to expire December 



2 

 

31, 2022 and Cortney S. Nash won the 2-year seat on the Sweet Home City Council 
with a term to expire December 31, 2020. 



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 
WHEREAS, there has been put to the voters of the City of Sweet Home, petitions to fill vacancies 
on the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, petitions were voted upon November 6, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the results of said election have been counted, canvassed and returned;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Greg Mahler, Mayor of the City of Sweet Home, do proclaim as follows: 
 
 The outcome of the voting on the Council positions described above was: 
 
   Susan M.C. Coleman  1626  
   Diane E. Gerson             1378  
   Greg Mahler    1524 
   Bob Briana       730 
   Greg Korn      941 
   Larry Angland   1157 
   Cortney S. Nash   1291  
   Write – In      143 
   Over Votes               40 
   Under Votes    5166 
          
 
Greg A. Mahler, Susan M.C. Coleman, and Diane E. Gerson will fill the four-year terms to expire 
December 31, 2022. 
Cortney S. Nash will fill the two-year term to expire December 31, 2020. 
 
PROCLAIMED this 11th day of December 2018. 
 

______________________________________ 
                   Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________  
City Manager - Ex Officio City Recorder 









ORDINANCE BILL NO. 5 FOR 2018 

ORDINANCE NO. 1273

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP. 

WHEREAS, the City of Sweet Home submitted application Zone Change ZC 18-03 and requested a 
zone change for an approximately 5.3-acre property from the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone to the 
Commercial Highway (C-2) Zone. The subject property is identified as 3225 Main Street, Sweet Home, 
OR 97386; and identified on the Linn County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E33B Tax Lot 101; including 
adjacent right-of-way within Main Street (Highway 20); and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Sweet Home held a public hearing on October 15, 
2018 with due notice of such public hearing having been given, and provided an opportunity for public 
comments and testimony. The Planning Commission deliberated at their October 15, 2018 meeting, 
and recommended that the City Council approve this application; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on this matter on October 23, 2018, with due notice 
of such public hearing having been given, and provided an opportunity for public comments and 
testimony. The City Council unanimously approved this application by motion at their October 23, 2018 
meeting;  

Now, Therefore, 

THE CITY OF SWEET HOME DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1:  The City of Sweet Home adopts the findings of fact in support of zone 
change application ZC 18-03 included as Exhibit A.  

Section 2: The City of Sweet Home amends the Official Zoning Map, identified in SHMC 
17.20.020 as the City Zoning Map of 2003 including all subsequent amendments, for the 
approximately 5.3-acre property located at 3225 Main Street, Sweet Home, OR 97386; 
and identified on the Linn County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E33B Tax Lot 101; including 
adjacent right-of-way within Main Street (Highway 20). The Official Zoning Map shall be 
amended from the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone to the Commercial Highway (C-
2) Zone for the subject property as shown on Exhibit B.

Passed by the Council and approved by the Mayor this 11th day of December, 2018. 

 ____________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

  __________________________     
City Manager - Ex Officio City Recorder 



Exhibit A 
 

Findings of Fact in Support of Zone Change Application ZC 18-03 
 

 
  REVIEW AND DECISION CRITERIA  

The review and decision criteria for a zone change are listed below in bold. Findings and analysis are 
provided under each review and decision criterion.  

A. An amendment to the official zoning or comprehensive plan map may be authorized 
provided that the proposal satisfied all relevant requirements of this title and also provided 
that the applicant demonstrates the following: [SHMC 17.12.010] 

a. The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals and policies of the 
comprehensive plan; [SHMC 17.12.025(A)] 

Findings: The applicant is proposing to change the zoning of the subject property from R-1 to C-2. The 
Comprehensive Plan Map designation of the subject property is Highway Commercial. The current R-1 
zoning designation is not consistent with the existing Comprehensive Plan Map designation of the 
subject property. The proposed zoning would implement the Highway Commercial Comprehensive Plan 
Map designation, and would therefore be consistent with the Sweet Home Comprehensive Plan. 

The application complies with this criterion. 

b. The proposed amendment is orderly and timely, considering the pattern of 
development in the area, surrounding land uses, and any changes which may have 
occurred in the neighborhood or community to warrant the proposed amendment; 
[SHMC 17.12.025(B)] 

Findings: The subject property has historically been used as a government use facility. Prior to 
acquisition by the City, the property was used as a U.S. Forest Service facility. The City of Sweet Home 
does not have a zoning designation that is specifically designed to facilitate public use. The proposal in 
this application, in combination with Conditional Use Permit CU 18-12, would formally memorialize and 
authorize the historic government use of the subject property.   

The application complies with this criterion. 

c. Utilities and services can be efficiently provided to serve the proposed uses or 
other potential uses in the proposed zoning district; and [SHMC 17.12.025(C)] 

Findings: The City of Sweet Home is planning to remodel the former U.S. Forest Service building in 
order to use the building as a new City Hall. The property is currently served by water, sewer, and 
franchised utilities. The subject property has existing access to Main Street (Highway 20). Staff 
anticipates that due to the nature of the proposed use of the property as City Hall, the property will be 
used for governmental use for the foreseeable planning future. 

The application complies with this criterion. 

d. OAR 660-012-0060(1). If an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged 
comprehensive plan, or a land use regulation (including a zoning map) would 
significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility, then the local 
government must put in place measures as provided in section (2) of this rule, 
unless the amendment is allowed under section (3), (9) or (10) of this rule. A plan or 
land use regulation amendment significantly affects a transportation facility if it 
would: 

i. Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation 
facility (exclusive of correction of map errors in an adopted plan);  



ii. Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or 
iii. Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (a) through (c) of this 

subsection based on projected conditions measured at the end of the 
planning period identified in the adopted TSP. As part of evaluating 
projected conditions, the amount of traffic projected to be generated within 
the area of the amendment may be reduced if the amendment includes an 
enforceable, ongoing requirement that would demonstrably limit traffic 
generation, including, but not limited to, transportation demand 
management. This reduction may diminish or completely eliminate the 
significant effect of the amendment. 

1. Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the 
functional classification of an existing or planned transportation 
facility; 

2. Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation 
facility such that it would not meet the performance standards 
identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan; or 

3. Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation 
facility that is otherwise projected to not meet the performance 
standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan. [OAR 660-
012-0060(1)] 

Findings: The subject property has existing access to Main Street; which is Highway 20. The Oregon 
Department of Transportation (ODOT) was notified of this application and did not have concerns with 
use of the subject property as City Hall. The proposed use would be consistent with past use of the 
property as a U.S. Forest Service facility. Based on these findings, the proposed zone change would 
not significantly affect the existing transportation infrastructure in the neighborhood. 

 



HWY 20

13S01E33B 00101

C-2

100

802

801

700

11001000

800

1700

1200

500

900

1300

7700

2700

1400

600

10300

105

7400

1001

6200

900

6800

3700 2800

8800

1100

7800

1000

6300

7900

1200

6100

6700
6600

6900

7700

3000

2900

3800

6000
8100

5700

5600

3500

3600

5500

5400

4000

3900

4100

8700

8600
7600

5000

4900

4800

4700

8500

4600

8400

7300

7200

7100

7000

8000

65006400

8300

100

5100

4500 4200 3400

5300

HWY 20

40
TH

LIN
DE

N
LA

UR
EL

40
TH

¯ 0 100 200 300 40050
Feet 1 inch = 200 feet

Exhibit B
Zone Change ZC 18-03

3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386

Legend
taxlots
roads

Subject Property
3225 Main Street
Sweet Home, OR 97386
13S01E33B Tax Lot 101
Including Adjacent Right-of-Way
Zoning Changed To: 
Commercial Highway (C-2) Zone



 

 

 
To:  City Council 
  Ray Towry, City Manager 
 
From:  Brandon Neish, Finance Director 
 
Subject: Finance Department Monthly Report – November 2018 
 
 
The Finance Department is responsible for the for the fiscal management of the City of Sweet 
Home. This includes accounts payable, payroll, general accounting, preparing the annual 
budget and the city’s annual audit. This department also administers the city’s assessment 
docket, coordinates employee’s benefits and maintains financial records relating to grants and 
contracts. The following information represents the department’s activities during the month of 
November 2018. 
 
Accounts Payable: 
The Finance Department maintains a weekly schedule for AP disbursements when possible. 
City departments submit documentation through Springbrook to request payment to vendors. 
Once the Finance Department has a completed purchase order and invoice/receipt, a check is 
printed and mailed within seven (7) business days. 
 
For the month of November 2018, 192 checks were printed totaling $879,075.25. A list of the 
checks is provided for your review. Below is a list of the checks that were equal to or exceeded 
$5,000 and their purpose (if not clear on list). 
 
 

Check No. Vendor Description Amount 

88072 
Linn County Tax 
Collector 

Taxes due for flex 
building 

$9,128.13 

88112 Axis Electric 
10th Ave Reservoir 
electrical work 

$8,237.00 

88118 Business Oregon 
Sewer I&I Loan 
Payment 

$280,923.82 

88158 
The Bank of New 
York Mellon 

Sewer I&I Loan 
Payment 

$220,292.10 

88195 
Waste Connections, 
Inc. 

Code Enforcement 
Cleanup Day 

$5,015.62 

 
 
Passports: 
Since 2001, the city has been accepting passport applications for the United States 
Department of State. Travelers can call, stop by city hall or visit the city’s website for 
information on application requirements. 
 
For the month of November 2018, the city processed 24 passports and took 18 passport 
pictures. 

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12th Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 

541-367-5128 

Fax 541-367-5113 

www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

 

Finance Department 



 

 

Lien Searches: 
 
The city has various liens that can be applied to properties in Sweet Home. The city can apply 
a lien for past due utility balances or a property owner can place a lien on their property for 
improvement assessments per ORS. An internet database maintains a list of these liens and is 
searchable by title companies for paying off outstanding balances during a sale. Each lien 
search generates $25.00 for the city. 
 
For the month of November 2018, 83 lien searches were completed. 
  
Utility Billing: 
In July 2017, utility billing became the responsibility of the Finance Department. Utility billing is 
responsible for the timely reading of water meters in the city and distribution of bills to 
residents and businesses. The revenue generated from the utility bills covers the costs 
associated with operating and maintaining the Water Treatment Plant and the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant as well as the maintenance of the city’s distribution and collection systems. 
 
For the month of November 2018, the city processed 172 service requests and saw 14 new 
customers open accounts in Sweet Home. In total, 41 accounts were opened and 42 were 
closed. The city processed 3,290 utility billing statements and 1,190 past due notices. 48 
accounts were turned off for non-payment on November 14, 2018. 



User:

Printed: 12/05/2018 -  9:32AM

bneish

Bank Reconciliation

Cleared and Not Cleared Checks

Checks by Date

Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

11/5/2018 88068 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. AP  21.67

11/5/2018 88069 COMCAST AP  166.59

11/5/2018 88070 TERESA CULLEY AP  338.72

11/5/2018 88071 Linn County Road Department AP  35.00

11/5/2018 88072 LINN COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AP  9,128.13

11/5/2018 88073 MOONLIGHT BPO, INC. AP  2,172.09

11/5/2018 88074 NATIONAL BUSINESS SOLUTIONS CORP AP  49.90

11/5/2018 88075 NORTHWEST NATURAL AP  16.86

11/5/2018 88076 O & M POINT S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. AP  50.00

11/5/2018 88077 GERALD SORTE AP  138.45

11/5/2018 88078 SUNSHINE INDUSTRIES UNLIMITED, INC. AP  325.00

11/5/2018 88079 SWEET HOME RV CENTER AP  15.00

11/5/2018 88080 THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP. AP  511.27

11/5/2018 88081 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AP  1,400.00

11/5/2018 88082 VERIZON WIRELESS AP  1,518.10

11/5/2018 88083 WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SERV AP  157.93

11/9/2018 88084 Stages Northwest, Inc. AP  850.00

11/13/2018 88085 ALSCO AP  250.15

11/13/2018 88086 DENNIS BARNHART AP  150.00

11/13/2018 88087 BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING AP  26.94

11/13/2018 88088 BUCK'S SANITARY SERVICE, INC. AP  711.00

11/13/2018 88089 CASCADE COMPUTER MAINTENANCE, INC. AP  2,000.00

11/13/2018 88090 Foster Lake RV Resort AP  2,822.13

11/13/2018 88091 GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, INC. AP  10,000.00

11/13/2018 88092 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES AP  860.31

11/13/2018 88093 LINN COUNTY RECORDER AP  190.00

11/13/2018 88094 NET ASSETS AP  436.00

11/13/2018 88095 NEW ERA AP  415.10

11/13/2018 88096 OFFICE DEPOT AP  116.09

11/13/2018 88097 PACIFIC POWER AP  21,074.55

11/13/2018 88098 SENIOR CITIZENS OF SWEET HOME, INC. AP  25,303.00

11/13/2018 88099 SIERRA SPRINGS AP  58.62

11/13/2018 88100 SPRINGBROOK NATIONAL USER GROUP AP  175.00

11/13/2018 88101 SUNSHINE INDUSTRIES UNLIMITED, INC. AP  325.00

11/13/2018 88102 TCMS, INC. AP  1,331.00

11/13/2018 88103 TWGW, INC. NAPA AUTO PARTS AP  26.98

11/13/2018 88104 WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEASING AP  76.27

11/13/2018 88105 WILCO AP  28.99

11/15/2018 0 ASI-PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AP  11.25

11/15/2018 0 FEDERAL PAYROLL TAXES AP  4,906.70

11/15/2018 0 ADVANCES AP  13,900.00

11/15/2018 0 OREGON PAYROLL TAXES AP  2,780.00

11/15/2018 88106 PEO Chapter FA AP  250.00

11/16/2018 88107 US POSTMASTER AP  150.00

11/19/2018 0 Cardmember Services AP  12,168.15

11/19/2018 0 UMPQUA BANK - ACH AP  3,705.92

BR-Checks by Date (12/5/2018 -  9:32 AM) Page 1



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

11/19/2018 88108 A-1 COUPLING & HOSE AP  101.26

11/19/2018 88109 ACCELA, INC. #774375 AP  3,473.00

11/19/2018 88110 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. AP  229.98

11/19/2018 88111 JAMES ANDREWS AP  43.86

11/19/2018 88112 Axis Electric AP  8,237.00

11/19/2018 88113 Johnny Baugus AP  10.00

11/19/2018 88114 BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING AP  28.55

11/19/2018 88115 JANET BLAIR AP  100.00

11/19/2018 88116 ELIJAH R. L.  BROWN AP  565.00

11/19/2018 88117 BULLFROG ENTERPRISES AP  155.59

11/19/2018 88118 BUSINESS OREGON AP  280,923.82

11/19/2018 88119 CASCADE COMPUTER MAINTENANCE, INC. AP  3,364.00

11/19/2018 88120 CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT AP  175.56

11/19/2018 88121 CENTURYLINK AP  1,371.21

11/19/2018 88122 COMCAST AP  642.74

11/19/2018 88123 COMCAST BUSINESS AP  865.07

11/19/2018 88124 DEPT. OF CONSUMER AND BUSINESS SERVICES AP  3,738.31

11/19/2018 88125 DEMCO AP  289.38

11/19/2018 88126 SARAH DERRICKSON AP  97.84

11/19/2018 88127 Edge Analytical, Inc. AP  756.00

11/19/2018 88128 Candice Elliott AP  50.00

11/19/2018 88129 FASTENAL COMPANY AP  35.96

11/19/2018 88130 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3011 ACCT# 40579 AP  2,851.80

11/19/2018 88131 GRAINGER AP  90.61

11/19/2018 88132 H & H MACHINE, LLC AP  193.46

11/19/2018 88133 RACHEL HILLSMAN AP  161.63

11/19/2018 88134 GERALD HOWARD AP  40.00

11/19/2018 88135 HUTCHINS WELDING AND REPAIR, LLC AP  24.00

11/19/2018 88136 INTERTECH, INC. AP  1,153.75

11/19/2018 88137 DAKOTAH KEYS AP  11.47

11/19/2018 88138 DEAN LEBRET AP  7.98

11/19/2018 88139 LIBERTY ROCK PRODUCTS, INC. AP  315.91

11/19/2018 88140 LINN BENTON TRACTOR CO. AP  159.62

11/19/2018 88141 Linn County Road Department AP  35.00

11/19/2018 88142 TALON LIVINGSTON AP  37.01

11/19/2018 88143 KEVIN MAKINSON AP  199.99

11/19/2018 88144 MOOSE CREEK MACHINE & REPAIR, INC. AP  2,790.00

11/19/2018 88145 MURRAYSMITH AP  35,637.75

11/19/2018 88146 NATIONAL BUSINESS SOLUTIONS CORP AP  14.00

11/19/2018 88147 OREGON DEPT. OF REVENUE AP  2,670.24

11/19/2018 88148 OREGON DEPT. OF STATE LANDS AP  985.47

11/19/2018 88149 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AP  4.14

11/19/2018 88150 PETROCARD AP  3,453.40

11/19/2018 88151 RENEWABLE RESOURCE GROUP, INC. AP  504.00

11/19/2018 88152 RENEWED PROPERTIES, LLC AP  129.50

11/19/2018 88153 PATRICIA RICE AP  9.78

11/19/2018 88154 SAIF CORPORATION AP  1,640.88

11/19/2018 88155 SOUTH FORK TRADING CO., INC. AP  34.20

11/19/2018 88156 SURE-CLEAN NORTHWEST, INC. AP  543.50

11/19/2018 88157 Tell & Sell / Sweet Home Printing AP  133.43

11/19/2018 88158 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON AP  220,292.10

11/19/2018 88159 SEQUOIA THEIN AP  46.94

11/19/2018 88160 WALKER HEATING & AC, INC. AP  1,800.00

11/19/2018 88161 CHARLES & DENISE WHITLEY AP  26.35

11/19/2018 88162 BRIAN WOMACK AP  53.23

11/19/2018 88163 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3011 ACCT# 40579 AP  1,753.39

BR-Checks by Date (12/5/2018 -  9:32 AM) Page 2



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

11/21/2018 88164 AHA CONSULTING, INC. AP  2,000.00

11/21/2018 88165 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. AP  168.87

11/21/2018 88166 AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING CORP. AP  679.80

11/21/2018 88167 CASCADE COMPUTER MAINTENANCE, INC. AP  750.00

11/21/2018 88168 DAVID M. COREY Ph.D AP  420.00

11/21/2018 88169 DRIVER AND MOTOR VEHICLE SERVICES AP  6.00

11/21/2018 88170 ECLECTIC EDGE EVENTS, LLC AP  100.00

11/21/2018 88171 Edge Analytical, Inc. AP  680.00

11/21/2018 88172 FASTENAL COMPANY AP  282.06

11/21/2018 88173 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3011 - METER ACCT #46780 AP  1,027.50

11/21/2018 88174 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3011 ACCT# 40579 AP  93.74

11/21/2018 88175 GATEWAY IMPRINTS, INC. AP  453.50

11/21/2018 88176 GRAINGER AP  555.01

11/21/2018 88177 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES AP  101.70

11/21/2018 88178 HOY'S TRUE VALUE AP  444.20

11/21/2018 88179 HUTCHINS WELDING AND REPAIR, LLC AP  12.78

11/21/2018 88180 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL AP  391.91

11/21/2018 88181 MOONLIGHT BPO, INC. AP  745.49

11/21/2018 88182 NEU FLO PLUMBING AP  854.00

11/21/2018 88183 NEW ERA AP  769.99

11/21/2018 88184 NORTHWEST CODE PROFESSIONALS AP  5,284.85

11/21/2018 88185 OFFICE DEPOT AP  63.70

11/21/2018 88186 TIM RILEY AP  13.00

11/21/2018 88187 SAIF CORPORATION AP  75.00

11/21/2018 88188 SELECTEMP CORPORATION AP  686.48

11/21/2018 88189 STAPLES ADVANTAGE AP  476.95

11/21/2018 88190 SUNSHINE INDUSTRIES UNLIMITED, INC. AP  650.00

11/21/2018 88191 RAY TOWRY AP  19.98

11/21/2018 88192 TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO., INC. AP  169.89

11/21/2018 88193 TWGW, INC. NAPA AUTO PARTS AP  447.44

11/21/2018 88194 WALKER HEATING & AC, INC. AP  1,187.50

11/21/2018 88195 Waste Connections, Inc. AP  5,015.62

11/21/2018 88196 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. AP  66.00

11/21/2018 88197 CH2M OM SERVICES AP  88,439.17

11/21/2018 88198 Edge Analytical, Inc. AP  2,106.00

11/21/2018 88199 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER AP  554.64

11/21/2018 88200 NORM'S ELECTRIC, INC. AP  142.50

11/21/2018 88201 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AP  24.79

11/21/2018 88202 PACWEST MACHINERY, LLC AP  134.61

11/21/2018 88203 PRIMASING MOTORS, INC. AP  1,008.74

11/21/2018 88204 SAMARITAN OCCUPATIONAL MED AP  95.00

11/21/2018 88205 SELECTEMP CORPORATION AP  466.29

11/21/2018 88206 TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO., INC. AP  2,488.27

11/30/2018 0 Vantagepoint Trf. Agents 108524/109047 AP  578.59

11/30/2018 0 MEDICARE AP  139.82

11/30/2018 0 FEDERAL PAYROLL TAXES AP  502.38

11/30/2018 0 OREGON PAYROLL TAXES AP  79.93

11/30/2018 0 FICA PAYROLL TAXES AP  597.88

11/30/2018 88207 911 SUPPLY AP  640.90

11/30/2018 88208 ALSCO AP  242.98

11/30/2018 88209 ANDERSON ENTERPRISES AP  88.80

11/30/2018 88210 BI-MART CORPORATION AP  2,625.00

11/30/2018 88211 Rickie Birran AP  225.00

11/30/2018 88212 Canon Financial Services, Inc. AP  458.71

11/30/2018 88213 COMCAST AP  166.59

11/30/2018 88214 COMCAST BUSINESS AP  1,507.88

BR-Checks by Date (12/5/2018 -  9:32 AM) Page 3



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

11/30/2018 88215 DAN DEE SALES AP  358.00

11/30/2018 88216 DAY MANAGEMENT CORPORATION AP  1,311.75

11/30/2018 88217 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3011 ACCT# 40579 AP  37.20

11/30/2018 88218 GAME TIME AP  502.70

11/30/2018 88219 International Conference of Police Chaplins AP  125.00

11/30/2018 88220 JUNIOR LIBRARY GUILD AP  106.55

11/30/2018 88221 GORDON LAHRSON AP  111.94

11/30/2018 88222 LEAGUE OF OREGON CITIES AP  6,769.27

11/30/2018 88223 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER AP  846.93

11/30/2018 88224 LITHIA MOTOR SUPPORT SERVICES AP  67.08

11/30/2018 88225 DAVID LUND AP  37.38

11/30/2018 88226 MAILFINANCE AP  675.81

11/30/2018 88227 CHAYHOWA MCELHINNY AP  35.00

11/30/2018 88228 METEREADERS, LLC AP  1,977.57

11/30/2018 88229 MID-VALLEY NEWSPAPERS AP  579.00

11/30/2018 88230 Myron Corportation AP  108.06

11/30/2018 88231 NORTHWEST NATURAL AP  1,200.51

11/30/2018 88232 O & M POINT S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. AP  40.00

11/30/2018 88233 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AP  40.39

11/30/2018 88234 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOMATION AP  202.20

11/30/2018 88235 PACIFIC POWER AP  21,121.61

11/30/2018 88236 PASTEGA COFFEE SERVICE AP  150.88

11/30/2018 88237 PETROCARD AP  3,007.20

11/30/2018 88238 PATRICIA RICE AP  11.50

11/30/2018 88239 GINA RILEY AP  69.94

11/30/2018 88240 KEITH ROHRBOUGH AP  125.00

11/30/2018 88241 STAPLES ADVANTAGE AP  739.75

11/30/2018 88242 SYNCB/AMAZON AP  1,521.99

11/30/2018 88243 TCMS, INC. AP  2,822.50

11/30/2018 88244 THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP. AP  511.27

11/30/2018 88245 TWGW, INC. NAPA AUTO PARTS AP  317.33

11/30/2018 88246 WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEASING AP  1,296.85

11/30/2018 88247 LARRY WHITBY AP  7.14

11/30/2018 88248 Roseanne Wirth AP  30.00

Total Check Count:  192

Total Check Amount:  879,075.25

BR-Checks by Date (12/5/2018 -  9:32 AM) Page 4



 
 
             
             
             
             
   
 

November happenings at the Library! 

Statistics 
 
Patrons checked out 2,961 items and renewed 836 items.   
 
Patrons placed 251 items on hold.  
 
Staff issued 65 new library cards to patrons and 4 nonresident cards. 
 
376 individuals signed on to use the computers in the library and printed 611 pages. 
 
Resource sharing savings was $2,298.05 for November.   
 
 

Events 
The library received a Siletz Tribal Charitable Contribution Fund grant in the amount of 
$1,519.15.  The library also received and Oregon Community Foundation grant in the 
amount of $4,500.00.   
 
We had 8 baby, toddler and preschool programs with 64 children and 48 adults in 
attendance. 
 
Two second grade classes from Oak Height came to the Library after hour’s event. 
We had 74 children and adults participate in the program.   
 
We “popped up” at the Capitol Christmas tree event and read the story “Apples to 
Oregon”, had the children make Conestoga paper wagons and served delicious 
honeycrisp apples.  We also presented Senator Wyden with a copy of the book, “Apples 
to Oregon” and a box of honeycrisp apples donated from Grandapa’s Farm.   
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by - Rose Peda, Library Services Director 
December , 2018 

City of Sweet Home 
Sweet Home Public Library 

1101 – 13th Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 

541-367-5007 

 

 

 

 

 

Sweet Home Public Library 



QUARTERLY CIRCULATION STATISTICS

BY ITEM TYPE

2018 October November December

Auto Manuals 0 0 0

Books on CD 96 120 151

Children's Board Books 122 115 101

Children's Easy Readers 238 266 184

Children's Fiction 228 295 261

Children's Graphic Novels 96 105 56

Children's NonFiction 222 264 180

Children's Picture Books 530 632 596

Children's Ready to Read 108 101 74

DVDs 533 627 628

Fiction 330 351 398

Magazines 32 43 27

Music CD 43 3 6

Mystery 246 285 258

New Fiction 136 177 154

New NonFiction 68 65 60

New Mystery 97 140 147

New Science Fiction 4 6 13

NonFiction 231 284 242

Northwest 18 19 14

Paperback General 21 15 10

Paperback Mystery 43 37 36

Paperback Romance 41 40 35

Paperback Westerns 10 24 14

Paperback Science Fiction 4 10 7

Science Fiction / Fantasy 30 46 15

Teen Fiction 95 105 80

Teen Graphic Novel 16 3 11

Teen NonFiction 1 7 5

Westerns 28 25 31

Ukuleles 3 3 2

TOTALS 3689 4216 3797



Statistics for September, 2018 Statistics for October, 2018 Statistics for November, 2018 
 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

OPAC Logins                      220 OPAC Logins                     244 OPAC Logins           208           
SIP2 Logins                        362 SIP2 Logins                       396 SIP2 Logins                 359       
   
CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS 
Checkouts                          2898 Checkouts                         3235 Checkouts                    2961      
Renewals by Staff             688 Renewals by Staff            621 Renewals by Staff          733   
Renewals by OPAC           169 Renewals by OPAC          360 Renewals by OPAC         103   
   
HOLDS REQUESTED HOLDS REQUESTED HOLDS REQUESTED 

Holds by Staff                    98 Holds by Staff                    139 Holds by Staff                 158    
Holds by OPAC                  123 Holds by OPAC                  131 Holds by OPAC                  93 
   
ACTIVE PATRONS             2484 ACTIVE PATRONS            2432 ACTIVE PATRONS             
   
NEW PATRONS NEW PATRONS                  NEW PATRONS                  
Resident                              35 Resident                             48 Resident                       65      
NonResident                       14 NonResident                      3 NonResident                4      
   
   
ITEM COUNTS                     36182 ITEM COUNTS                   36135 ITEM COUNTS                35921    
   
PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS              PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS              
Logins this month                337 Logins this month               450 Logins this month              376 
Pages printed                        556 Pages printed                      1231 Pages printed                    611 

 
Resource Sharing Savings  $2,886           Resource Sharing Savings  $2,604.57       Resource Sharing Savings  $2,298.05 
 
 



 

 

Library Advisory Board Minutes 
November 8, 2018 

Meeting Time 4:30pm 
 
Present at the meeting were Charlene Adams, Diane Gerson, Eva Jurney and Don Hopkins and 
guest Ian Scofield.   
 
Motion to approve the minutes from October 11, 2018 meeting.  Motion was seconded.  (Motion 
approved 4 ayes, 0 opposed, 1 absent) 
 
By consensus, Kevin Hill’s absence was excused for this meeting. 
 
Ian Scofield introduced himself and explained that he was a new Master of Library Science 
student through Emporia State University.  His class assignment was to shadow a librarian for a 
day and write a paper.  Ian explained that he currently works in the library at Oregon State 
University and has been there 11 years.   
 

There was discussion regarding the “detail” of the minutes.  It was concluded that if a 
controversial topic was discussed then more provide detail on the resolutions or conclusions of 
the discussion. 
 
The statistics and fiscal reports were reviewed.  There were no questions from Board members. 
 
The library’s participation in the Capitol Christmas Tree program was discussed.  The Library 
mailed apples, a map of the tree route and a poster.  Diane Gerson donated the money for the 
mailing of the apples.   
 
The library will be hosting the Christmas Carole in Prose by Rickie Birran of Man of Words 
Theater on December 13, at 6:30pm.   
 
Rose reported that Diane Gerson accompanied her to Chinook Winds Casino to pick up the 
grant check in the amount of $1,519.15 to purchase VOX books for the library. 
 
Oregon Corrections has been contacted to provide a quote for a new circulation desk.  Some of 
the issues they were asked to address was patron/staff interaction and workflow and height 
adjustment capabilities for desk.   
 
The “pay for print” system with the photocopier from the Trust Management Grant still needs 
completion before the final report can be written.   
 
Rose reported that Ray Towry asked for a capital campaign plan.  Rose will have something to 
share at the Library Board meeting in December.   
 
Don Hopkins informed the Board that he would not be attending the meeting in December.   
 
 
 
The next Library Board meeting will be January 10, 2019 at 4:30pm.   



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  City Council 
  Ray Towry, City Manager 
  Interested Parties 
FROM:  Jerry Sorte, Community and Economic Dev. Director 
DATE:   December 4, 2018 
SUBJECT:  Community and Economic Development Department Report for November 2018 

 
  
The Community and Economic Development Department (CEDD) consists of the City’s 
Building, Planning, Economic Development, Code Enforcement, and Parks and Recreation 
programs. The following is a summary of activities for the month of November 2018, as well as 
notes on current projects. 

 

1. BUILDING 
 

• Summary of Building Program Permits Issued (November 1, 2018 – November 30, 2018). 
 

Construction Category Number of Permits 

Residential 1 and 2 Family Dwellings 2 

Residential Manufactured Dwellings 2 

Residential Structural  3 

Residential Mechanical Permits 10 

Residential Plumbing 1 

Residential Demolition 0 

Commercial Mechanical 0 

Commercial Structural 3 

Commercial Plumbing 0 

Commercial Demolition 1 

Commercial Site Development 1 

Total Permits 23 

Value Estimate of All Permits $643,340.00 

Fees Collected $9,855.47 

 

 
2. PLANNING 

 

• Summary of Planning Division Permits Issued (November 1, 2018 – November 30, 2018). 
 

Permit Type Number of Permits 

Conditional Use Permits 0 

Variance 2 

Partition 1 

Property Line Adjustments 0 

 



Community and Economic Development Department Report for November 2018  2 

The Department is currently working on updates to the Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC). 
Staff has identified several amendments that are needed now in order to facilitate administration 
of the SHMC. The Planning Commission will hold a work session, which is tentatively scheduled 
for January 7, 2019, to consider these amendments. Staff is also working on the comprehensive 
code update project. The goal is to create a draft code by City staff and then solicit peer review 
from a contractor; likely John Morgan. Once the code is ready after staff and peer review, it 
would be presented to the Planning Commission for review. At that point, the code would go 
through a public review process as a text amendment to the SHMC. It will be important that 
there be an opportunity for robust review and public input in order to ensure that the code meets 
the needs of the City Council and Sweet Home community. 
 
3. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

I attended the Sweet Home Active Revitalization Effort (SHARE) meeting on November 7, 2018. 
We continued discussion on the concept of establishing an innovation hub that is modeled after 
the Corvallis Foundry (www.corvallisfoundry.com). An innovation hub is a physical location 
where entrepreneurs, remote workers, and new businesses could rent work space and connect. 
The innovation hub would act as business incubator. The location would be a central hub for 
providing resources to small business, and would be a location to hold business networking, 
resource and training events. I anticipate resuming these discussions and bringing a concept 
before the City Council during the first part of 2019. 

 

4. CODE ENFORCEMENT 

The City hosted a clean-up day at the Transfer Station on November 3, 2018. This was an 
opportunity for city residents to be able to dispose of garbage free of charge. The event 
collected approximately 38 tons of garbage. The City’s Code Enforcement Officer responds to 
complaints submitted through the City’s website, and actively patrols the City and works to 
resolve identified code violations. 

 

5. PARKS  

Staff is preparing for the December 19, 2018 Park and Tree Committee meeting. The agenda 
will include a review of a proposed capital improvement plan, a discussion on the City’s 
recreation program, and discussion related to preparing a grant application to the Oregon Parks 
and Recreation Department (OPRD) under the Local Government Grant Program. An OPRD 
grant would present a significant opportunity for the City to develop a park. Under the Local 
Government Grant Program, the City would need to provide a 40% match for a park 
development project, and the grant could cover up to 60% of project costs. The City completed 
park planning efforts during the past several years for Sankey and Strawberry Parks. This grant 
could feasibly implement development plans at one of those parks.  

 

Public Works staff has prepared Sankey Park to accommodate the new, pre-fabricated restroom 
facility. Staff reached out to CTX, who indicated that the restroom will likely be placed during the 
first week in January. The Department is also partnering with the Rotary Club to host the 
Sweetheart Run; which will take place on Saturday, February 9, 2019.   

 

6. OTHER PROJECTS 

Joe Graybill, Staff Engineer has acted as project manager for the new City Hall construction 
project. He anticipates the remodel to begin the week of December 10. 

 



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Ray Towry, City Manager 
FROM:  Greg Springman, Public Works Director 
DATE:   December 3, 2018 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Activities Report/November 2018 
 
  
 
This memorandum provides a brief periodic update of specific projects and activities performed 
by the Public Works Department. 
 
Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) Dashboard 
This dashboard section summarizes work done on key maintenance activities. Goals will be 
adjusted over time as workloads shift to keep up with current requirements. Routine activities 
are tracked monthly. Seasonal activities are tracked on a year-to-date basis and may not reflect 
work done prior to implementing our new Dude Solutions work order system. 
 

Potholes repaired
2/30

Street sweeping miles
540/300

Locate tickets
19/40

Water leak repairs
3/5

Hydrant service/repairs (YTD)
155/200

Playground equipment inspection 4x each
4/16

Clean parks restrooms & garbage 8x each
21/72

Mow each park 12x each (YTD)
97/96

Sewer main miles CCTV (YTD)
0.6/15

Sewer main miles cleaned (YTD)
0/15

Manhole leak repairs (YTD)
0/8

Catch basins inspect & clean (YTD)
546/500

November 2018

 
 
 
 

Work Orders

Posted: 722

Completed: 438

Top 10 Categories

Leaf Collection 

Vacuuming - Streets
161

Hydrant Flushing 155

Catch Basin Cleaning 113

Water Turn Ons/Offs 55

Meter Re-Read 32

Open Storage 22

Bathrooms/Garbage 21

Street Sweeping 13

Public Works Facility 12

Park Maintenance 8  



 
Current & Upcoming Projects 
 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement Project 

Scope: Upgrades to equipment & processes for DEQ Compliance. 

Status: Project on schedule. Staff & design team conducted site visits to tour Florence 
WWTP Biosolids composing facility. Workshop will be schedule for the upcoming weeks. 

 

Fall Leaf Collection Program 

Scope: Develop program to remove leaves from the City right of ways. 

Status: Staff sent information out to the community, asking residence to schedule leaf 
collection starting October 1st, through December 15, 2018. Residences can schedule by 
calling Public Works, or requesting pick up through pour Citizens Portal on the City website. 
Leaf collection Program is operational and having great reviews from the community.  

 

Sankey Park Restroom Installation 

Scope: Install new restroom facility in Sankey Park.  

Status: Restroom has selected and ordered. Staff selected CXT as the manufacturer, 
delivery tentative scheduled for November, 2018. PW staff completed rough grading for 
restroom and for the parking lot improvements. 

 

Parks Irrigation System Improvements 

Scope: Inspect and repair existing irrigation systems in Sankey Park, Northside Park, and 
Ashbrook Park.  

Status: Staff completed installation of new irrigation system at Ashbrook Park. Staff has 
ordered materials to install new irrigation system at Northside Park, east side of Clover Park, 
and remainder of lower Sankey Park. Staff has discovered an irrigation system installed in 
Strawberry Park. Staff to investigate costs for repair. 

 

2018 Overlay Project 

Scope: 2” pavement overlay on 18th Ave, Ames Creek Rd, 45th-46th-47th Aves, & Kalmia St. 

Status: Project is in preliminary design and planning. 

 

Weddle Bridge Inspection and Tuning 

Scope: Inspect and maintain Weddle Bridge. 

Status: Inspection of Weddle Bridge is required to certify structural integrity. Report will follow 
the inspection process with recommendations.  

 

Public Works Facility Security Upgrades 

Scope: Install security system at Public Works Facility 

Status: Staff installed new security system at Public Works Facility. Staff is making camera 
adjustments as needed to ensure proper camera coverage of Public Works grounds. Staff is 



in discussion with an alarm system vendor for the equipment yard. 

 

DEQ - 18th Ave Groundwater Contamination Resolution 

Scope: Support DEQ project to resolve neighborhood issue of contaminated groundwater 
east of 18th Ave and north of Tamarack St. 

Status:  Staff will proceed with LID for secure funding. 

 

Air/Vacuum Valve Program 

Scope: Locate air/vacuum relief valves on city water system and prioritize recommended 
maintenance, to resolve distribution issues caused by air pockets. 

Status: New valve installed at Lake Pointe Pump Station.  New valve installed at highway by 
Murphy Mill.  Replaced existing dysfunctional valve at 44th Ave.  Work will be ongoing. 

 
Water Service Reconnection Program 

Scope: On streets with redundant water mains, reconnect water services from old 2” mains to 
existing new larger mains and abandon redundant 2” mains. 

Status: Plans for Elm Street water service reconnections are complete & ready for bid. City 
Council to review RFP for the water meter reconnection project in October, 2018. Staff 
completed bid process, but will add additional street repair work to the project, then re-bid the 
project. 

 

10th Ave Reservoir Leak & SCADA Relocation 

Scope: Resolve water loss issue from leaking 1938 reservoir and relocate SCADA equipment 
to newer reservoir. 

Status: Staff located and isolated valve for this reservoir. Staff to determine water loss. The 
SCADA contractor completed the relocating of SCADA equipment onto the newest reservoir 
on 10th Ave., which will provide better level data at low storage levels and allow continuance 
of data connection while the old reservoir is isolated/evaluated. All work has been completed. 

 

Linn Shuttle Bus Shelters 

Scope: Support Linn Shuttle grant project to install bus shelters at highway locations. 

Status: Linn Shuttle has retained a contractor for installation and has ordered the shelters.  
Staff assisted Linn Shuttle with the ODOT application. 

 
 






	(a) City Council Agenda 12-11-18
	(A)(1) Council Minutes  11-27-18 - ES
	(A)(2) Council Minutes 11-27-18
	(E)(a)(1) RCA - 2018 Personnel Policies Update - Dec 11, 2018
	(E)(a)(2) Personnel Policies Track Changes
	(E)(a)(3) Res. No. 20 for 2018 - Personnel Policies
	(E)(a)(4) Personnel Policies Final
	(F)(a)(0) RCA - Canvassing of Election Results
	(F)(a)(1) Proclamation - Council Results 2018
	(F)(a)(2) Final & Official Write-In Tally General Election 11-06-18
	(F)(a)(3) Linn County Election Results 11-06-2018
	(G)(i)(1) Ordinance Bill  for City Hall Zone Change and Exhibit A (no expediency)
	(G)(i)(2) ZC 18-03 Ordinance Exhibit B
	(H)(c)(i)(1) November 2018
	(H)(c)(i)(2) Checks by Date
	(H)(c)(ii)(1) City Council report November 2018
	(H)(c)(ii)(2) Circulation Statistics by Item type September, October, November 2018
	(H)(c)(ii)(3) Patron Statistics for September, October, November 2018
	(H)(c)(ii)(4) Library Advisory Board Minutes November 8, 2018
	(H)(c)(iii)(1) CEDD Monthly Report 12-4-18
	(H)(c)(v)(1) PW Monthly Report 120318
	(z) Comcast Notice 12-2018

